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GENERAL

Peace Mark (Holdings) Limited (the “Company"”) was incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability. Its

shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 18

to the financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STATEMENTS OF
STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE

In the current year, the Group has adopted the following new
and revised Statements of Standard Accounting Practice
("SSAPs”) issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants:
SSAP 1 (Revised) Presentation of financial statements
SSAP 11 (Revised) Foreign currency translation
SSAP 15 (Revised) Cash flow statements
SSAP 34 Employee benefits

SSAP 1 (Revised) requires the Group to present a new
statement “Statement of changes in equity”. The new

statement reconciles movements of the equity from the

beginning to the end of a year.

SSAP 15 (Revised) prescribes the revised format of the cash
flow statement in which the cash flows during the year will
only be classified by operating, investing and financing
activities. These changes have not had any material effect on
the results for the current or prior accounting years and,
accordingly, no prior year adjustment has been required.
Comparative figures have been restated in order to achieve a

consistent presentation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3&$R & BsE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2003

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STATEMENTS OF
STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE (Continued)

Save as aforesaid, the adoption of other new and revised
SSAPs as outlined above does not have material impact on
results reported in the current or prior year, though the
terminology used and certain disclosures have been revised in

line with the new requirements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Statements of Standard Accounting Practice issued by
the Hong Kong Society of Accountants, accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
modified with respect to the measurement of investments in
securities and leasehold properties, as further explained in
the respective accounting policies below. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set

out below:

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
include the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries. A subsidiary is a company whose financial
and operating policies are under the Company's control,
directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are consolidated from or to their
effective dates of acquisition or disposal. The equity
and net income attributable to minority shareholders’
interests, representing the interests of outside
shareholders, are shown separately in the Group's

balance sheet and income statement, respectively.

RN RSB R E
' ()

BR st Ah - R4 Lt Pt 2 A R
AR e EBEAEAFE KAl
ZEEHEEAYE HMBARRET
BREE TEIIAREHHRTE -

TESHBERBE
EHREBEEE QMRS TR
ZEHEREN  BREEBRANLER
BIRBBRAGACEBEREMRE - It
EHBIMETIRBERAKAREA RS -
WERGEFFRERBENEFER
HttH AR BN T X R A RA - &
SERMZIBSFBEBANT -

pu]}

N

ARBZGERMBRERRAAT

EMBARZHBERSE - HB
ARAA B ER KRR G AR
ERENRERBPRE 2R

Al AEEBARHEZHMBERT
B HEBUBZAMBHEAR
ARIEAAREEFRLEZEN

o LEERES (BNRER
) B2 IRARIRAFE
DRNARR 2 EERER LK
RHBUIIR -

/N

%

Annual Report F§H 93




FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003

3.

94

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Peace

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Intragroup balances and transactions and resulting
unrealized profits are eliminated in full. Unrealized losses
resulting from intragroup transactions are eliminated
unless cost cannot be recovered. Consolidated financial
statements are prepared using uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and other events in similar

circumstances.

In the Company’s financial statements, investments in
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. The results of the subsidiaries are
included in the income statement to the extent of

dividends received and receivable.

Associates and jointly controlled entities

An associate is a company, not being a subsidiary or a
joint venture, in which an equity interest is held, or the
long-term and significant influence is exercised in its
management. A jointly controlled entity is an entity
which operates under a contractual arrangement
between the group or company and other parties, where
the contractual arrangement established that the group
or company and one or more of the other parties share

joint control over the economic activity of the entity.

The consolidated income statement includes the Group's
share of the results of associates and jointly controlled
entities for the year, and the consolidated balance sheet
includes the Group's share of the net assets or liabilities of
the associates and jointly controlled entities and also
goodwill/negative goodwill (net of accumulated amortization

and accumulated impairment losses) arising on acquisition.

M ark (Holdings)

Notes to the Financial Statements B 3E$R &M sE

3.

Limited H¥ER

(a)

TESHEERE (&)

REE%E (E)

SENBERERINRMEEZ
RET G MO BRI - BRIETHE
WERIKA  BAEEARERH 2K
ZRBETTAME - HE B
SNHBLURZURBUBRZE
ERMAR -G BREMBEH -

RABZHMBERER  RHERF
ZRE AR AFNE R RTERE
BRI - MBARZEEIZE
W & AR B AT AR &R

ARETRHARS BRI Y

THEERBEEK AT
REMATREGNMERHELE 2
MZAAMRSHER
VA VR YN 2]
RB) AR KRG o

NEBERARAREHEEZ
BEFEXRE  TEEKERH
EXZHE/AHE (R REEH
FEBERERR)

(£®) AR 2 &



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003
HBE-FF=F=A=1—HLFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Associates and jointly controlled entities
(Continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in
associates and jointly controlled entities are stated at
cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of
associates and jointly controlled entities are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividends received

and receivable.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
interest in the fair values of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the subsidiaries at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life or 20 years. The

amortization charge for each period is recognized as an

expense.

Goodwill arising from transactions completed prior to 1
April, 2001 is written off directly against reserves and is
reduced by impairment losses. Any impairment loss

identified is recognized as an expense.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3E$R &M sE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003

BEr—_EE=—F=-F=1—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of an interest in a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill not previously amortized through
the consolidated income statement or which has
previously been dealt with as a movement on group
reserves is included in the calculation of the profit or

loss on disposal.

(d) Negative goodwill

Any excess, as at the date of the transaction, of the

Group's interest in the fair values of the identifiable

assets and liabilities acquired over the cost of the

acquisition, should be recognized as negative goodwill.

Negative goodwill is recognized in the income statement

as follows:

(@) to the extent that negative goodwill relates to
expected future losses and expenses that are
identified in the Group’s plan for the acquisition
and can be measured reliably, that portion of
negative goodwill is recognized as income when
the future losses and expenses are recognized.

(b) the amount of negative goodwill not exceeding
the fair values of acquired identifiable non-
monetary assets is recognized as income on a
systematic basis over the remaining weighted
average useful life of the identifiable acquired
depreciable/amortizable assets.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003
HBE-FF=F=A=1—HLFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Negative goodwill (Continued)

(c)  the amount of negative goodwill in excess of the
fair values of acquired identifiable non-monetary

assets is recognized as income immediately.

Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is deducted from the carrying amount of that
associate. Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition
of subsidiaries is presented separately in the balance

sheet as a deduction from assets.

Investments in securities

Investments in securities are recognized on a trade-date
basis and are initially measured at cost. At subsequent
reporting dates, debts securities that the company has
the expressed intention and ability to hold to maturity
(held-to-maturity securities) are measured at amortized
cost, less any impairment loss recognized to reflect
irrecoverable amounts. Any discount or premium on the
acquisition of a held-to-maturity security is aggregated
with other investment income receivable over the term
of the instrument so that the revenue recognized in
each period represents a constant yield on the

investment.

Investments other than held-to-maturity debt securities
are classified as securities for trading purposes and other

securities.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003

BEr—_EE=—F=-F=1—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Peace

Investments in securities (Continued)

Where securities are held for trading purposes,
unrealized gains and losses are included in net profit or
loss for the year. For other securities, unrealized gains
and losses are dealt with in equity, until the security is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss is included in net profit

or loss for the year.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after the fixed assets have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance
and overhaul costs, is normally charged to the income
statement in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the
use of the fixed asset, the expenditure is capitalized as

an additional cost of the fixed asset.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2003

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Fixed assets and depreciation (Continued)

Advantage has been taken of the transitional relief
provided by paragraph 80 of SSAP 17 (Revised)
“Property, plant and equipment” from the requirement
to make regular revaluations of the Group’s land and
buildings which had been carried at revalued amounts
prior to 30 September, 1995, and accordingly no further
revaluation of land and buildings is carried out. In
previous years, surplus arising on the revaluation of these
assets was credited to the revaluation reserve. Any future
deficit in value of these assets will be dealt with as an
expense to the extent that they exceed the balance, if
any, on the revaluation reserve relating to a previous
revaluation of the same asset. On the subsequent sale
or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable

revaluation surplus is transferred to accumulated profits.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or valuation
of fixed assets over their estimated useful lives. With
effect from 1 April, 2002, the Group revised the annual
depreciation rates and the depreciation method of
certain categories of fixed assets corresponding to the
change in estimate of the useful lives and the expected
pattern of consumption of economic benefits of those
fixed assets as set out below. The directors believe that
the change in accounting estimate will result in more
appropriate presentation of events and transactions in

the financial statements.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Continued)

(f)

Peace

Fixed assets and depreciation (Continued)

Freehold land
KAERELH

Leasehold land

HELH

Buildings

Leasehold improvements

MEMFKE

Other assets

Hth&EE

2003

Nil

Over the term of lease

REHFH

2% straight line method or

over the term of lease

whichever is shorter

BREAREZ2%HEBHFH

(AmEERE)

20% reducing balance method

BB R E220%

20% reducing balance method

BB R EE220%

As a result of this change in accounting estimate, the

Group's profit for the year has been increased by

HK$7,549,000.

The useful lives of assets and depreciation method are

reviewed periodically.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of

a fixed asset is the difference between the net sale

proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,

and is recognized in the income statement.
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BE—_EE=-—F=-F=1—HIFE

==

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Fixed assets and depreciation (Continued)

Properties under construction are stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. This includes cost of

construction, plant and equipment and other direct costs.

Properties under construction are not depreciated until
such time as the assets are completed and ready for

their intended use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Intangible
assets are recognized if it is probable that the future
economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will
flow to the enterprise, and the cost of the asset can be

measured reliably.

Subsequent expenditure on an intangible asset after its
purchase or its completion is recognized as an expense
when it is incurred unless it is probable that the
expenditure will enable the asset to generate future
economic benefits in excess of its originally assessed
standard of performance and can be measured and
attributed to the asset reliably in which case it will be

added to the cost of the intangible asset.

After initial recognition, intangible assets are measured
at cost less accumulated amortization and any

accumulated impairment losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets mainly comprise the following:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Technical know-how

The costs of acquiring technical know-how in
connection with product development for the
licensed products manufactured by the Group are
capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis

over the terms of the relevant licenses.
Licenses

The cost of licenses represents the upfront cost
payable and is amortized on a straight-line basis
from the date of commencement of its economic

use to the end of the terms of the licenses.
Trademark

Trademark is stated at acquisition cost and is
amortized on a straight-line basis over its expected

future economic life of 20 years.

The amortization period and the amortization
method are reviewed annually at each financial

year end.

(h) Impairment of assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group assesses whether

there

is any indication that fixed assets, intangible assets,

interests in subsidiaries, interest in an associate and

interest in a jointly controlled entity have suffered an

impairment loss. If such an indication exists, the

recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order

to determine the extent of the impairment losses, if

any.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

The recoverable amount is the higher of the net selling
price and value in use of an asset. The net selling price
is the amount that could be obtained from the sale of
an asset in an arm’s length transaction less the costs of
the disposal, while value in use is the present value of
estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the
use of the asset and from its disposal at the end of its

useful life.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognized as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
firstly charged against the related revaluation reserve to
the extent of the amount held in the revaluation reserve

with any excess recognized as an expense.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, which is restricted
to the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation

increase.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Peace

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost, calculated on the first-in first-out
basis, comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Net realizable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and the

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognized as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognized. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realizable value
and all losses of inventories are recognized as an expense
in the period in which the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories, arising from an increase in net realizable
value, is recognized as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognized as an expense in the period in

which the reversal occurs.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided under the liability method
in respect of timing differences between profit as
computed for taxation purposes and profit as stated in
the financial statements to the extent that it is probable
that a liability or an asset will crystallize in the

foreseeable future.

M ark (Holdings)

Notes to the Financial Statements B 3E$R &M sE

3.

Limited H¥ER

TESHEERE (&)

rE

FEDRKARITERFEZBIE
BIVEE o KAIREAN K LERE -
HPBEMERERA « BRRA
AR 1 BB A B FOEBIR KR
RAFER 2 H AR - AT RFE
RBBEBBRS 2 ETEEMBR

fhat 2 SRR A R At 5t 1T SH & P
BLZIRA
EHEFER  ARAFECEEEF

BREREBKA 2 BE - B2
RAX - BEEHMAZATZRFE
ZHEURGFEZHBRE - IR
EITHOR S LR BB 2 BEER A
Rz o B A] 8 3R 58 B 7 i 8 B
E#EEE 85 - HRNETER
HEEERRRAX 2 FEHET
BRA—EHRER -

IEEH TR
BERETRABEERRBAEZ
it 1) % B 75 R 5 7R A 51 2 i A BT e
BBz NUAEHRBREE
REEER ER KK E R B E&
& -

(£®) AR 2 &



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2003

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the
applicable rates of exchange ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are
translated at the applicable rates of exchange ruling at
that date. Exchange differences are dealt with in the
income statement.

On consolidation, the transactions of overseas
subsidiaries, associate and jointly controlled entity are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at an average rate
whilst the balance sheets are translated at the applicable
rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. The
resulting translation differences are included in the

exchange fluctuation reserve.

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of
obligation can be made. Expenditures for which a
provision has been recognized are charged against the
related provision in the year in which the expenditures
are incurred. Provisions are reviewed at each balance
sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money
is material, the amount provided is the present value of
the expenditures expected to be required to settle the

obligation.

3.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Continued)

(I)  Provisions and contingencies (Continued)

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial
statements. They are disclosed unless the possibility of
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
is remote. A contingent asset is not recognized in the
financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of

economic benefits is probable.

(m) Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with a transaction will flow to the Group
and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognized on the following

bases:

(i)  Sale of goods

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of goods have been

transferred to the customers.

(i) Rendering of services

Service income is recognized as services are

rendered.

(iii)  Rental income

Rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis

over the respective terms of the leases.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion
basis on the principal outstanding and at the rates

applicable.

Peace Mark (Holdings) Limited H®ERSR
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2003

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(v)  Sale of investments in securities

Sale proceeds of investments in securities are
recognized on a trade-date basis when contracts

are executed.

Leases

Finance leases
A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards incident to ownership of an asset.

Title may or may not eventually be transferred.

The Group recognizes finance leases as assets and
liabilities in the balance sheet at amounts equal, at the
inception of the lease, to the fair value of the leased
property or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments. In calculating the present
value of the minimum lease payments the discount factor
used is the interest rate implicit in the lease, when it
can be determined. Otherwise, the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate is used. Initial direct costs incurred are
included as part of the asset. Lease payments are
apportioned between the finance charge and the
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge
is allocated to periods during the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the

remaining balance of the liability for each period.

A finance lease gives rise to depreciation expense for
the asset as well as a finance cost for each accounting
period. The depreciation policy for leased assets is the

same as that for depreciable assets that are owned.

3.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Peace

Leases (Continued)

Operating leases

An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease.

Leases of assets under which substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Lease payments under an
operating lease are recognized as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

Off balance sheet financial instruments

Off balance sheet financial instruments arise from swap
transactions undertaken by the Group in the interest

rate markets.

The accounting for these instruments is dependent upon
whether the transactions are undertaken for trading

purposes or to hedge risk.

Transactions undertaken for trading purposes are marked
to market and the gains or losses arising are recognized
in the income statement. Transactions designated as
hedges are valued on an equivalent basis to the assets,
liabilities or net positions that they are hedging. Any
profits or losses are recognized in the income statement
on the same basis as those arising from the related
assets, liabilities or net positions. Unrealized gains on
transactions which are marked to market are included
in “Trade and other receivables” in the balance sheet.

Unrealized losses on transactions which are marked to

market are included in “Trade and other payables”.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2003

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognized when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to

the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity

leave are not recognized until the time of leave.

Retirement benefits

The Group contributes to a defined contribution
retirement scheme which is available to all
employees. Employees are required to contribute
each month an amount equal to 5% of the basic
monthly salary and contributions are made by the
employer at 5% of the employee’s basic monthly
salary. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's contributions to
this scheme are expensed as incurred and may be
reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting

fully in the contributions.

Notes to the Financial Statements B 3&$R & BsE
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003
BEr—_EE=—F=-F=1—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Continued)

(p) Employee benefits (Continued)

(if)  Retirement benefits (Continued)

A mandatory provident fund scheme (MPF) was
established under the MPF Ordinance in December
2000. Since the Company has obtained exemption
for its existing retirement schemes, all staff were
offered the choice of switching to the MPF scheme
or staying in existing schemes. Where staff elected
to join MPF, both the Company and staff are
required to contribute 5% of the employees’
relevant income (capped at HK$20,000 per
month). Staff may elect to contribute more than
the minimum as a voluntary contribution. The
Group's contributions to this mandatory provident

fund scheme are expensed as incurred.

The Group also contributes to employees pension
schemes established by municipal government in
respect of certain companies in Mainland China.
The municipal government undertakes to assume
the retirement benefit obligations of all existing
and future retired employees of the Group.
Contributions to these schemes are charged to

the income statement as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3&$R & BsE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003
HBE-FF=F=A=1—HLFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FES:HEHE (&)

(Continued)
(p) Employee benefits (Continued) (p) EEREH (&)
(i) Share option scheme (i) FEARHEETZ

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. The financial
impact of share options granted under the share
option scheme is not recorded in the Company’s
or the Group’s balance sheet until such time as
the options are exercised, and no charge is
recorded in the income statement or balance sheet
for their cost. Upon the exercise of share options,
the resulting shares issued are recorded by the
Company as additional share capital at the nominal
value of shares, and the excess of the exercise
price per share over the nominal value of the
shares is recorded by the Company in the share
premium account. Options which are cancelled
prior to their exercise date, or which lapsed, are

deleted from the register of outstanding options.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3E$R &M sE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q)

P} Peace

Related parties

Two parties are considered to be related if one party
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other
party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties
are also considered to be related if they are subject to

common control or common significant influence.

Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash without notice and which were within
three months of maturity when acquired, less advances
from banks repayable within three months from the
date of the advance. Cash equivalents include

investments and advances denominated in foreign

currencies provided that they fulfill the above criteria.

Segments

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group
that is engaged either in providing products (business
segment), or in providing products within a particular
economic environment (geographical segment), which
is subject to risks and rewards that are different from
those of other segments. In accordance with the Group's
internal financial reporting, the Group has chosen
business segment information as the primary reporting
format and geographical segment information as the

secondary reporting format.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2003

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Segments (Continued)

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well
as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to
that segment. Segment revenue, segment expenses and
segment performance include transfers between
segments. Such inter-segment pricing is based on similar
terms as those available to unaffiliated customers for
similar products. Those transfers are eliminated upon

consolidation.

Segment capital expenditure represents the total cost
incurred during the year to acquire segment assets (both
tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used

for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets and liabilities, interest-bearing loans,

borrowings and corporate and financing expenses.

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION

In accordance with its internal financial reporting policy, the

Group has determined that business segments should be

presented as primary reporting format. However, business

segments are not presented because the Group’s turnover

and operating profit were contributed solely by manufacture,

trading, distribution and related service income of timepiece

products.

Geographical segments are presented as secondary reporting

format, segment revenue is based on the final destination of

goods sold. There are no sales between the segments.

3.

A nnual
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003

BEr—_EE=—F=-F=1—HIFE

4.

114

Notes to the Financial Statements B 3E$R &M sE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. DIBER (&)
Segment assets and capital expenditure are based on the DHEERERAZINEEBAEERR
geographical location in which the assets are located at the TEh R R A o
balance sheet date.
2003
Segment Capital
Turnover  Segment results assets expenditure
L PREE PHEE ERMEX
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
TEx TET FEx TET
United States of America @ 568,502 74,919 175,194 686
Asia o 301,038 39,166 970,938 69,679
Europe B 210,391 28,403 52,478 5,110
Latin America HTEM 39,168 7,156 24,112 -
1,119,099 149,644 1,222,722 15475
Other revenue X e 19,668
Unallocated expenses AABRS (75,683)
Finance costs B (13,407)
Share of loss of a jointly controlled entity B —RRZHIXER (6:194)
Profit before taxation BR BT A 74,028
Unallocated assets ROREE 60,911
Total assets BEE 1,283,633
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3&$R & BsE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003
HBE-FF=F=A=1—HLFE

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. DWER (&
2002
Segment Capital
Turnover  Segment results assets expenditure
EEL PHEE NHEE BERRY
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FET FAL FAL
United States of America EJe 508,467 61,063 108,886 -
Asia S 222,542 26,671 78,739 39,208
Europe B 206,001 24,725 617,580 83,834
937,010 112,459 805,205 123,042
Other revenue En iz 12,915
Unallocated expenses AAERT (76,403)
Finance costs B AR (9,264)
Profit before taxation BR 2 A A 39,707
Unallocated assets FOREE 196,643
Total assets BEE 1,001,848
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003
BEr—_EE=—F=-F=1—HIFE

5.

TURNOVER AND OTHER REVENUE

(a) Turnover

Notes to the Financial Statements B 3E$R &M sE

5.

Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable

for goods sold, less discounts and returns, and for

services rendered by the Group to outside customers

during the year.

ERAERE S
(a) EX#H

EXRBNEFAAKRERIINAER
SEMBITMEEE RRERS 2
B R e R

(b) Other revenue (b) Hfuugz
2003 2002
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(BE5))
Interest income FE WA 5,128 5,090
Rental income HE WA 4,130 1,252
Realization of negative goodwill BEREER 4,101 =
Exchange gain R 1,523 2,917
Sundry income HIEWA 4,786 3,656
19,668 12,915
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3&$R & BsE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003
HBE-FF=F=A=1—HLFE

6. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 6. KERF
Profit from operations has been arrived at after charging the RERMNENKRTISIE :
following:
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T& T
Auditors’ remuneration ZERM &
- Current year —RFE 908 762
— Underprovision in prior years —UARFERETE 35 50
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets BREEEENE
- Owned assets -BEEE 34,857 29,060
- Assets under finance leases -BMEHEEE 1,454 2,380
Amortization of intangible assets BHEREE 5,399 3,344
Amortization of goodwill B3 719 617
Loss on disposal of investments in securities HEZEFIZEEE - 10,823
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments E LKA (BIEEZME)
- Wages, salaries and benefits in kind IE #FeRkEYHZ® 44,846 39,954
—  Pension costs: defined contribution BB A — EBE NS
plans, net of forfeited contributions B B R Wt 3R
(note 9) (Ktat9) 1,080 923
Minimum lease payment in respect of RigEEHEME 2 HE
properties under operating leases HERHIE 1,079 447
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003

Notes to the Financial Statements B 3E$R &M sE

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BB
2003 2002
HK$000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Interest on; B
Term loans, syndicated loan and BRAFAZHERZ
bank overdrafts wholly repayable EHER REEXR
within five years RFTES 13,286 9,084
Obligations under finance leases BLE T B IE 121 180
13,407 9,264
8. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 8. EEREEME

Particulars of the Directors’ and the five highest paid

employees’ emoluments are as follows:

EERANGESFMEE CMEFBEN
T

(@) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM2
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Directors’ fees: EEWG

— Executive -YITEE = =
- Non-executive —EHTES 250 190
250 190

Other emoluments (Executive Directors): EH & (HiTEE)
Salaries and other benefits e hEMERN 3,500 3,744
Pension scheme contributions BIREFT IR 156 156
3,656 3,900
3,906 4,090
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3&$R & BsE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003
HBE-FF=F=A=1—HLFE

8. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 8. EEREEMSE (&

(Continued)

During the year, 7,820,000 options (2002: Nil) were FRN - AREIREBRET ST
granted to three Directors of the Company under the =H/=%7,820,0000 B E (=
Share Option Scheme (Note 30). The emoluments of ToF 0 ®) (30 - =F5H&

the Directors are within the following bands: NFETH&EE -
2003 2002
Number of Number of
Directors Directors
ESAY EEYN
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 2 1,000,0007% 7T 8 10
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7L £ 1,500,000/ 7T 1 1
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003

Notes to the Financial Statements B 3E$R &M sE

with the highest emoluments are within the following

bands:

ENFTIIEE

8. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 8. EEREEME (&)
(Continued)
(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) EEME
= —FE E
During the year ended 31 March, 2003, the five highest HME-BB-_F-A=1-ALF
= VESdk BE=(3
paid individuals included three Directors (for the year B BUSRHALTRRE-ME
===
ended 31 March, 2002, the five highest paid individuals FEE-_FF-_F=A=1"H
T NS SHEATE
included four Directors), details of whose emoluments IEFRE - BALRRHALHF A
=% v H z B
are set out in note 8(a) to the financial statements above. REF) AMEFHHRN LM
R A YT 23 ® H
The emoluments of the remaining individuals for the BREM () « FARBALLZ
, e :
year are as follows:
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and other benefits e hHEMEF 1,575 650
Pension scheme contributions RIRETEIH R 19 12
1,594 662
The emoluments of the two (2002: one) individuals WA (ZZEZ2=F : — ) &z AL 2

2003 2002

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE AE

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,000/ 7T 1 -
2 1
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003
HBE-FF=F=A=1—HLFE

10.

11.

Notes to the Financial Statements B 3&$R & BsE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME COSTS 9. EBRARBRIFTEIK A
Retirement benefit scheme costs amounting to HK$1,102,000 AEBFAXNZRNBHMEKRER
(2002: HK$996,000) were paid by the Group during the year. 1,102,000/8 7L (ZZZ =4 : 996,000/5
Forfeited contributions totalling HK$22,000 (2002: HK$73,000) 7o) © FRER Iz A 22,0004 7T
were refunded during the year. (ZZEZ=F : 73,000870) E FRE °
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS 10. RERELEF
Of the Group’s profit attributable to shareholders, a profit of R B 2 IR FE4h i 1| R /5 $040,363,000
HK$40,363,000 (2002: loss of HK$15,342,000) has been dealt BTz mM (ZZEZZF ¢ 15,342,000
with in the financial statements of the Company. TZEB)ERARRZHBHREFE
3N
TAXATION 11. B\
(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) EHREWERAZIRIER :
represents:
2003 2002
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Hong Kong Profits Tax BB FH
Current year KEE 4,119 2,868
Underprovision in prior year BAEERETR 516 56
Deferred taxation (Note 27) BRI (fifat27) 3,360 1,653
7,995 4,577
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3E$R &M sE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003
BEr—_EE=—F=-F=1—HIFE

11. TAXATION (Continued) 11. HIE (&)

(b) Tax payable in the consolidated balance sheet

b) HEEEABRAZENBER:

represents:
The Group
r5E
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Hong Kong Profits Tax BENEH
Provision for Hong Kong profits REEZBEMEH
tax for the year BE 4,119 2,868
Provisional profits tax paid ERZEHMER (473) (1,402)
Balance of profits tax payable in FFERNEFEH
respect of prior year et 558 770
4,204 2,236

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the prevailing BB MG IARE B A5 ERTOR
FIRBITHRE16% (Z T —F :

16%) 5t & °

rate of 16% (2002: 16%) on the estimated assessable

profits for the year.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note (27) to EREEREZFBIANMBERE

the financial statements. MiEE27 -
12. DIVIDENDS 12. BRE

2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T

Interim dividend of HK1.5 cents per share R EAIR B &R% 1.5/l
(2002: Nil) (ZEE2_F : &) 8,276 -

Final dividend of HK1.5 cents per share R EA R B &A% 1.5l
(2002: Nil) (Z2T=F: 8) 9,463 -
17,739 -

W¥VA Peace Mark (Holdings) Limited BEERN (£8) R A
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12. DIVIDENDS (Continued) 12. 8 (&

RERERR EFERARE_TT=F
BEESRISEN  B8HY
9,463,000/ 7T ° EHIKE MRS ILEA
B EEERERRBFAS LEMRE -

A final dividend in respect of 2003 of HK1.5 cents per share
amounting to approximately HK$9,463,000 was proposed by
the Directors after the balance sheet date. The proposed
dividend has not been accounted for until it is approved at

the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BREF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is BRERRE SR THRE T EE

based on the following data:

i

2003 2002
(Restated)
(B&E7))
(a)  Basic earnings per share FRELXEF
Profit attributable to shareholders PR B 115 35 A
(in HK$'000) (F&xT) 58,199 36,397
Weighted average number of shares B3 fin#E F 152
(in '000) (F&h) 421,755 200,186
Basic earnings per share (cents) FRREARZF (L) 13.80 18.18
(b)  Diluted earnings per share BIREERT
Profit attributable to shareholders PR B 1535 R
(in HK$'000) (F&xT) 58,199 36,397
Weighted average number of shares  B& D In#EF19
(in '000) (F&) 421,755 200,186
Potential dilutive shares (in '000) BEEERG (F51) 428 -
Adjusted weighted average number  ALFEE MEFHE
of shares (in '000) (F&h) 422,183 200,186
Diluted earnings per share (cents) FhirEsg AR () 13.79 N/A T~ F

A nnual
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14.

124

RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 6 June, 2002, A-ONE INVESTMENTS LIMITED (“A-ONE"),
an investment holding company which is owned as to 50.45%
by Mr. Chau Cham Wong, Patrick and 49.55% by Mr. Leung
Yung, entered into an underwriting agreement (the
“Underwriting Agreement”) with the Company regarding the
rights issue of the Company. Since A-ONE is an associate of
both Mr. Chau Cham Wong, Patrick and Mr. Leung Yung
who are the substantial shareholders and executive directors
of the Company, the Underwriting Agreement is a connected
transaction for the Company which is exempted from
shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule
14.24(b)(c) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

On 28 August, 2001, EganaGoldpfeil has reached an
agreement with United Success Enterprises Limited (“United
Success”), a company wholly owned by Mr. Leung Yung, for
the sale of 367,830,000 shares (or equivalently 18,391,500
shares after the share consolidation on 25 January, 2002
whereby every 20 issued shares were consolidated into 1
consolidated share) of par value of HK$0.10 each which
represents approximately 10% of the share capital of the

Company at a consideration of HK$49,800,000.

Peace M ark (Holdings)

Notes to the Financial Statements B 3E$R &M sE

14.

Limited H¥ER

BBMATRBERS
RZZEZ_F, A BARERER
DA E D BIHEA50.45% K 49.55% HE i
2B R A AA-ONE INVESTMENTS
LIMITED ([A-ONE]) EARE BB AR A 2
HREBEMmE] B HE G ([2 5%
#l) c ARA-ONEAKRARIZEERRF
WTESEAEREERREREEZHEA
T WBHERBERARAZEERS @ %
BRGDRBEEBHERHNAERARE
7 £ A 14.24(0) () R EF R BV Ik
RHLA o

R—_ZEZE-—F A AAZ-Z+NBH
EganaGoldpfeill B2 R EE 2 BRAZ R
AlUnited Success Enterprises Limited
(TUnited Success]) K —H % * JARK
{€49,800,00078 7T i & 367,830,000/ &
IREE0.10/8 T R (REER_ZEE
—E-A-tHBETEOHAG K820
BREBTROEHA—RAEHKRNDEZ
18,391,5008 B 0) » AR BIBAH
10% ©

>

(£®) AR 2 &
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14. RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS 14. BBMATITRBERS (&)

(Continued)

Upon completion of the sale of said shares in the issued share
capital of the Company by EganaGoldpfeil to United Success,
the shareholding held by EganaGoldpfeil and its associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) in the Company was decreased
from approximately 16.5% to approximately 6.5%. Thereafter,
that is effective from 28 August, 2001, EganaGoldpfeil ceased
to be connected party to the Company under the Listing Rules
and the trading transactions between the Group and
EganaGoldpfeil do not constitute connected transactions of

the Group.

Pursuant to SSAP 20, parties are considered to be related if
one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operating decisions. After the
sale of the shares by EganaGoldpfeil to United Success,
EganaGoldpfeil was ceased to be related party to the Company,

also on 28 August, 2001.

EganaGoldpfeil 52 [ United Successt &
ARAEBITRADZ L& Hi&
EganaGoldpfeil R KB A+ (ER R £
RANMARR ZMHE - H#16.5% T %
EH6.5%  Fk MR-_TT—F)\A
“+tNAE EganaGoIdpfeiWﬁi%$Q
AREETRAZEBAL  MAR
EganaGoldpfeil 2 fi Z ¥ X 5 I &K
AEEHBERS

BREGFEBRERE20%  WMER—F
Bt NERIBERH S —FSH5—
TEFLBBRLERERETEEKR
TEN ABRBERBEBAL -
EganaGoldpfeil[F United Successit) & %
71 + EganaGoldpfell MR =T Z—F N\
AZ+NBTBRARARZHBAL -
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14. RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS 14. BBRATRBERS (&

(Continued)
During the year, the Group had the following material FAAEERABBARTLATER
transactions with its related parties: RS
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Sale of goods to EganaGoldpfeil M EganaGoldpfeil &
and its subsidiaries HffE R RHEE m (i) = 6,462
Purchase of raw materials from [MlEganaGoldpfeil &
EganaGoldpfeil and its subsidiaries HitB AR B ERE 0] - 48
Rental income from a subsidiary [FlEganaGoldpfeilZ
of EganaGoldpfell MBARWERBASKA (i) - 347
Trade purchases from a jointly A — £ REE S B
controlled entity B E S g (i) 6,089 =
Rental income from a jointly A — £ REE S B
controlled entity U E A & W A (i) 2,652 =
Notes: Htst
(i) Sale and purchase transactions with EganaGoldpfeli and its subsidiaries (i) HiEganaGoldpfeill REMBAR#ITZER
were in relation to timepiece related transaction and were effected on RGDFRENEBRER S @ WREFZ
normal commercial terms. PR RFEAT ©
(i) The rental income is in relation to the letting of the factory premises of (ii) e WA R A& B 3 TR B 2 R
the Group in the PRC for the production activities of EganaGoldpfeil’s B % tEganaGoldpfeil 2 A4 EEBKE
leather business. The rental income was negotiated at arm’s length. Ao HEWAMIRERERAR o
(i) These transactions are conducted on the basis determined by parties (i) HERDDEITNSHMET 2 EE#ET -
concerned.

Wl Peace Mark (Holdings) Limited BEERN (£8) R A
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3&$R & BsE

15. FIXED ASSETS 15. BIE&EE
The Group
A%
Properties  Freehold and Leasehold
under Leasehold improve- Plant and
construction properties ments  machinery Other assets Total
EE KAXER HE HBER®E
wE  HENE DREE R#E HtEE Bzt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Cost or valuation RS E
As at 1 April, 2002 RZTEZF
mA—H 35,577 111,516 67,780 154,335 21,223 390,431
Additions NE = 20,550 42,412 13,352 25,362 101,676
Disposals HE - - - (1,649) (520) (2,169)
Reclassification EX ] (35,577) 72,615 (37,038) = = =
As at 31 March, 2003 RZ-ZT=F
=B=+—H = 204,681 73,154 166,038 46,065 489,938
Comprising 8
At valuation e = 14,000 — - = 14,000
At cost A = 190,681 73,154 166,038 46,065 475,938
As at 31 March 2003 HRZZTT=F
=A=+—H = 204,681 73,154 166,038 46,065 489,938
Accumulated depreciation RIEITE
As at 1 April, 2002 RZTT_F
mA—H = 9,236 17,409 55,609 15,235 97,489
Provided for the year — AN & - 4,858 7,610 21,235 2,608 36,311
Eliminated on disposal & B #fl $4 - - - (679) (253) (932)
As at 31 March, 2003 RZ-ZE=F
=H="=8 = 14,094 25,019 76,165 17,590 132,868
Carrying value BREE
As at 31 March, 2003 RZ-ZZT=F
=A=+—8H = 190,587 48,135 89,873 28,475 357,070
As at 31 March, 2002 RZ-ZTT=F
—A=+—H 35,577 102,280 50,371 98,726 5,988 292,942
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15.

128

FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

One of the leasehold properties of the Group was revalued as
at 31 March, 1995, on an open market value basis by Messrs.

Jones Lang Wooton Limited, independent registered surveyors.

At 31 March, 2003, had the leasehold properties of the Group
been carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation,
their carrying value would have been approximately

HK$185,996,000 (2002: HK$93,723,000).

The carrying value of the leasehold properties includes an

amount of approximately HK$49,418,000 (2002:
HK$43,267,000) in respect of an industrial waste management

system implemented in an electroplating factory of the Group.

The carrying value of properties held by the Group comprises:

Notes to the Financial Statements B3R &b

15.

BE&E (&
ARBET—RRENEHBT IR
AHETERARR-AAEF=A=T
— B2 AMNERESS -

RZZET=€=A=+—0 HA£EHA
ENEEABEARRRERRENE
AZEHEDFE 2 EAERENAR
185,996,000 T (Z 2T = F :
93,723,000/ 7T) °

HEVEZRAFHEEREASEEER

R TEREREIE Z£4749,418,00058
T (ZEZ - : 43,267,000 7T) °

AKEARFNEZEAERSR

The Group
rEE
2003 2002
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Leasehold properties: HEWME
Held in Hong Kong, medium-term leases REBRFHALNFE 15,956 16,343
Held in People’s Republic of China, R AR EME IR
medium-term leases RHEIRAEE 169,802 83,902
Freehold properties: KAKREYE
Held outside Hong Kong REBEBAIMNDE RS 4,829 2,035
190,587 102,280

Peace M ark (Holdings)

Limited H¥ER
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15.

16.

Notes to the Financial Statements B 3&$R & BsE

FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 15. BEEE (&)
As at 31 March, 2003, the carrying value of the Group's fixed RZZEZE=F=A=1+—H A5EUF
assets held under finance leases was approximately EHNERACETEEZREEAOR
HK$3,404,000 (2002: HK$776,000). 3,404,000 T (Z2 T =4 : 776,000/
JT) °
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. BILEE
The Group
rEE
Technical
Know-how License Trademark Total
TEAR K [ Foh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FET FET
Cost R A
As at 1 April, 2002 —EE-_FWA—H 7,140 15,000 39,208 61,348
Additions 2 - - 22,460 22,460
As at 31 March, 2003 —EE=F=[=1+—H 7,140 15,000 61,668 83,808
Amortization B
As at 1 April, 2002 —“TZ-HFMA—H 5,660 11,837 - 17,497
Provided for the year REEHERE 846 2,498 2,055 5,399
As at 31 March, 2003 —EE=F=f=1+—H 6,506 14,335 2,055 22,896
Carrying value EEFE
As at 31 March, 2003 —EE=F=-A=+—H 634 665 59,613 60,912
As at 31 March, 2002 —EE-_F=-A=+—H 1,480 3,163 39,208 43,851
A nnual R e p or t &F§ 129
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17(A). GOODWILL 17(A). 78
The Group
rEE
2003 2002

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET
Cost [N
At the beginning of the year F9) 12,331 -
Additions il 8,386 12,331
At the end of the year 48 20,717 12,331
Accumulated amortization B
At the beginning of the year 1 617 -
Provided for the year FREE 719 617
At the end of the year FIR 1,336 617
Carrying value RERE
At the end of the year FR 19,381 11,714
In the opinion of the Company’s Board of Directors, the ARAESERA RZTETE=F=H=
underlying value of goodwill as at 31 March, 2003 was not T-HRBZEBBEDTIRAERE
less than its carrying value. B o

K] Peace Mark (Holdings) Limited BEERN (£8) R A
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17(B). NEGATIVE GOODWILL 17(8). A& &
The Group
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F& T
Cost A
At the beginning of the year F4 = =
Additions 12 hn 4,101 -
At the end of the year Fr 4,101 -
Accumulated amortization Yt 5
At the beginning of the year 23] = =
Provided for the year FNEAE = =
Realization for the year FRER 4,101 -
At the end of the year FIR 4,101 -
Carrying value RERE
At the end of the year FR - -

A nnual

R ep ort &R




Notes to the Financial Statements B3R &b

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. MiB A RER

The Company

b N/N|
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Unlisted shares, at cost FELEMRMD - KA 51,398 51,398
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U BT /&8 A B 5138 686,320 577,275
Amount due to a subsidiary e~ — KK B 2 B IE - (1)
737,718 628,672
The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest HB AR EHAEEKR 2B REA
bearing and not repayable within the next twelve months. RAR+TZEARERK
As at 31 March, 2003, the underlying value of interests in RZEE=F=A=+—H '  EFRAMH
subsidiaries is, in the opinion of the Directors, not less than BAREZ ZIABEANTONARA AR
the carrying value in the books of the Company. BAZEREE -

KPA Pecace Mark (Holdings) Limited BEERN (£8) R A
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N

18. KB ATIHER (i&
AARIR-EE=F=A=+—-A2:E

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March,

2003 are as follows: EARFREMAT
Issued and
fully paid Percentage of
Place of capital/ equity interest Principal
incorporation/ registered held by place of Principal
Name of subsidiary registration capital the Company operation activities
AR/ BROTRAE ERFfE iE Ig
(if PR Bt B/ EREA RERI Y EXHE %
Direct Indirect
¢ L
% %
Aerostar Timewear British Virgin Us$1 = 51 United States Timepiece trading
International Limited Islands Ordinary and marketing
RERUES IZTEBR %8 B EHRER
Bensonic International British Virgin Us$100 - 51 United States Investment holding
Limited Islands Ordinary
RERUES 100 EBR *H REAR
Capricon Company British Virgin Us$100 - 100 The People’s Investment holding
Limited Islands Ordinary Republic of China
RERUES 100 EBR hEARANE REAR
Capricon Industrial The People’s HK$ 10,849,000 - 100 The People’s Property
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. Republic of China Republic of China investment
SAMER (RN ERAR MEARLTNE 10,849,000 7T hEARANE VES
Cornell Worldwide British Virgin Us$1 - 51 United States Timepiece trading
International Holdings Limited Islands Ordinary and marketing
RERNES IZTEBR %8 B EHRER
Epoch World Company Taiwan NTD10,000,000 - 60 Taiwan Timepiece
LimitedA distribution, trading
and marketing
2% #4%10,000,0007 AE Bita# - 85

A nnual
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

134

Place of

incorporation/

Name of subsidiary registration
ERRL/

MEARER ERbE
Fiorucci Timewear British Virgin
(Far East) Limited [slands
ZEBRUES

Fulltop Limited British Virgin
Islands

ZERUES

Guangzhou Goldsmith The People’s

Timepieces Company Limited ~ Republic of China

BNEERHERAR hEARAAE
Guangzhou Watchsmith Timepieces  The People’s

Servicing Company Limited Republic of China

BMNEEEREBRRAA REARLAE

Inter Mark Worldwide Hong Kong
Limited

AERRERAT Bk
Peace M ar k

(Holdings)

Issued and

fully paid

capitall
registered

capital
BEARAR
R/ dRBA

Us$1
Ordinary
IETERR
Us$1
Ordinary

1ETERER

RMB500,000

AR 500,007

RMB100,000

AR 100,000

HK$100
Ordinary
100A T ERK

18. MiIBATIHERE (&)

Percentage of

equity interest

held by

the Company
KRR
RERAL

Direct Indirect
=¢: B
% %

= 100

= 100

= 100

Limited BEEF (£M8)

Principal
place of
operation
Iz
EXuE

Hong Kong

B

Switzerland

it

The People’s
Republic of China

REARANE

The People’s
Republic of China

hEARKANE

Hong Kong

B

AR 2 A

Principal
activities
Iz
£

License
holding
HERTE

Trademark and
property holding
EESYESE

Timepiece
wholesaling
and marketing
BB RER

Provision of
after sales
service and
timepiece
components
REERRE
REssHEA

Timepiece distribution

vl
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 18. MIBARER (&)

Issued and
fully paid Percentage of
Place of capitall equity interest Principal
incorporation/ registered held by place of Principal
Name of subsidiary registration capital the Company operation activities
iERRL/ BRITRAR KRR IE IE
KWEARER Bt R/ dRBA REEDL EXibH %
Direct Indirect
E# A%
% %
Milus International S.A.A Switzerland CHF760,000 - 100 Switzerland Timepiece
manufacturing and
trading
Bt 760,000% A It Bt RERES
Montana Timepieces Hong Kong HK$100 = 51 Hong Kong Timepiece
International Limited Ordinary trading and
marketing
B 1008 T & AR B Bt BB RER
Omni Watch & Clock State of New York, 1S$8,698,090 - 51 United States Timepiece
Co., LLC.A United States distribution, trading
and marketing
ZERON 8,698,000% 0 X Bio# - 85
RERE
Peace Mark (B.V.l.) Limited British Virgin HK$10,000 100 = British Virgin Investment holding
Islands Ordinary Islands
EERAHEE  10,000BTEBR ZERIES REZR
Peace Mark Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Hong Kong Timepiece
Ordinary trading and
HK$10,000 marketing
Non-voting
deferred*
HEFERAT Bk 1008 T & Rk ) KBS RER
10,0005 7
ERZHEL
B (n*
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

136

Name of subsidiary

HEATEH

PM License Management
Limited
EZERERERAA

Pure Riches Industries
Limited

RHEXERATA

Sinotop Investment

Limited

Sky Type Limited

ZABRAA

Vico Industries Limited

World Grade Industries
Limited
tHEXERAR

Peace

M ark

Place of
incorporation/
registration
ERRL/
BRI

British Virgin
Islands

AERARE

Hong Kong

British Virgin
Islands
ZERAES
Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong

(Holdings)

Issued and

fully paid

capitall
registered

capital
BEARAR
R/ dRBA

Us$100
Ordinary
1005 T & AR

HK$2,760,000
Ordinary

2,760,000 7
2k

Us$1
Ordinary
IETERR

HK$10,000
Ordinary
10,0008 & @K

HK$100
Ordinary

100270 & BR
HK$10,000

Ordinary
10,0008 T E&R

Limited H¥ER

18. MiIB A RIH#EXE (&

Percentage of

equity interest

held by

the Company
KRR
RERAL

Direct Indirect
=¢: B
% %

= 100

Principal
place of
operation
Iz
EXuE

British Virgin
Islands

RERIES

The People’s
Republic of China

REARANE

Hong Kong

B

Hong Kong

B

The People’s
Republic of China

PEARANE

Hong Kong

Bk

(£®) AR 2 &

Principal
activities
Iz
£

License
holding
RERTE

Manufacturing
of timepiece
components

RGN

Investment holding

REER

Asset holding

REEE

Manufacturing
of timepiece
components

PEHHER

Property
investment

UESE
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

* The deferred shares, which are not held by the Group, practically carry
no rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at
any general meeting of the subsidiary or to participate in any distribution

on winding up.

A Companies not audited by Chu and Chu, Certified Public Accountants.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries not audited by Chu and
Chu, Certified Public Accountants reflect total net assets and total
turnover constituting approximately 7.9% and 1.1% respectively of the

related consolidated totals.

The above table listed the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results
of the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital outstanding at

the year end, nor at any time during the year.

Notes to the Financial Statements B 3&$R & BsE

18. MiBARIER (&)

* WHAAEETEZELER L Bl L EE
FERE - HRBANER AIEARRAERZ
BELHEAEGRRE - TEEREBEER
ISR °

A UHHNEBFHAKE - REEBTTER
iRz NE] - WHMNFETEFKE K
B &5 AN E S &R 2 IR Al R ER
B AR (B R AR E R RS Pt 1R A
#17.9% K 1.1% °

4]

EZERA LRAIIZAAAEMER
ARTEFEASEREREERBRA
SEEEFEEASD EXERR 8
DEMHBRRFEEBNITE -

RELFAFEZERER - ZHERAH
BEMAEEEERE -
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19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

Notes to the Financial Statements B3R &b

19. BF& N TR

The Group
2003 2002
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Share of net assets EiEEEFE 4,231 =
Unamortized goodwill AEHEE 19,169
23,400 -
Amount due from an associate JRE U — Bt & 2 B R IB 6,338 =
29,738 -

Details of the Group's associate as at 31 March, 2003 are as

follows:
Place of Issued and
Name of incorporation/ fully paid capital/
associate registration registered capital
EERTRAR

BENREM MR B R BA/EREE

Niceworld British Virgin us$10
Group Corporation Islands Ordinary
RERTES 10X T E AR

RZZE=F=A=+—0  Fr5EZK

BARZHEMT

Percentage of

equity interest

held by the
Company indirectly Principal activities

ERRABERE
ZREBEDL FEEHR

%
40 * Timepiece distribution

in Latin America

* IR T EM D #HEE

ki Peace Mark (Holdings) Limited BEERN (£8) R A
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19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 19. BN AER (F)
& On 31 March, 2003, the Group acquired 40% in the capital of Niceworld * R-ZBEE=ZF=ZF=+—H ZXEEKE
Group Corporation (“Niceworld”). Niceworld holds three subsidiaries Niceworld Group Corporation ([Niceworld])
which have their places of incorporation in Mexico, Panama and Peru RAH 2 40% #E25 ° Niceworld# 5 =X /1B
respectively. These three subsidiaries have the distribution network AR MEZ=FKHWBAALFEEAET - B
covering the whole of Latin America. EHEMMBFMAYL  UTHEBZ2H T X

12 73 44 -

20. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY 20 —RHAFEHEE 2ES
The Group
r5E
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Share of net liabilities of a jointly FEfE—HRAEHIRE

controlled entity BERE (6,131) -
Amount due from a jointly controlled entity Ui — R R 428 £ ZE 3K 15,666 =
9,535 -
On 30 September, 2002, the Group disposed of 1% interest RZZEZ_FNA=TH AKENEE

in the jointly controlled entity at par. LR 1R 2 2 1 %t o
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20. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

(Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements B3R &b

Details of the Group’s jointly controlled entity as at 31 March,

2003 are as follows:

Name of jointly

controlled entity

Place of incorporation

and operation

Issued and
fully paid capital/

registered capital

20.

(&)

e GEL TS E

RIZZ=F=A=+—H FEEz#

R 422 1

Percentage of
equity interest
held by the

Company indirectly

LEZFEBOT

Principal activities

EETRAR RARHEEREE
HEZEHOEEE LT R AR 3t B BRA/ZMER ZBRERDHL TEEH
%
Gar Shun Enterprises Hong Kong HK$400,000 49 Electroplating
Development Limited Ordinary
EACERRERAA B 400,000/ 7T, % 1 % Bif
21. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 21, HibdmsE
The Group
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Investments in securities ERRRE
Equity securities: R ENE
Listed in Hong Kong, at cost BELM KA 15 37
Unrealized holding loss REZKRERER (4) (22)
At market value EE 11 15
Other investments, at cost HiE » A 29,225 =
29,236 15

) Peace Mark (Holdings) Limited BEERN (£8) R A




Notes to the Financial Statements B 3&$R & BsE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2003

21. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued) 21, HteMEE (&)

Other Investments Hihir &

The amount of HK$29,225,000 represents investments in three H—XBEBBRBREBMEL A& X
investments and insurance combined policies issued by an 29,225,000/ 7T 2 = % & & Z 8 Rk 5t
international insurance group. A minimum annual return of 2 ZRBEE RERERREREF
4% is guaranteed by the insurance group. Insurance costs are 4% 5 fRER BN 1§ B R B 1% & B R AR 4T
being deducted from the investment return for the key man B o RIS IRARZ 2 ATIBHAR AT
insurances of the directors. The beneficiaries and the insured B -

are determined by the Company from time to time.

22. INVENTORIES 22. 7
The Group
rEH
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET +#& T
(Restated)
(B&E7))
Raw materials R 78,170 58,131
Work in progress K fn 67,460 44,725
Finished goods IR i 82,085 53,202
227,715 156,058
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R &b

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. ESRHMEWRIE
The Group allows an average credit period of 90 — 120 days AEBESEF ZEERTHAIE20
to its trade customers. H o
The Group
rEE
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivable from an associate fEW — B2 AR 2 B 5 W EUIE 31,324 =
Other trade receivables HibE 5 WA 131,088 127,788
162,412 127,788
Trade deposits k& 78,061 70,077
Other deposits, prepayments and Hiigs - BARE
other receivables N E b W 5108 102,005 145,023
342,478 342,888
Included in trade and other receivables are debtors (net of B 5 R EERFIE (BENRREERER)
provisions for bad and doubtful debts) with the following EABEETIZREDTA

ageing analysis:

The Group
A%

2003 2002

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET TET

0 - 90 days 0£90H 151,872 113,400
91 days — 180 days 91HZ180H 7,493 9,964
Over 180 days 180H A £ 3,047 4,424
162,412 127,788

EYS Peace Mark (Holdings) Limited BEERN (£8) R A




Notes to the Financial Statements B 3&$R & BsE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003
HBE-FF=F=A=1—HLFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. EZREMENRIE

Included in trade and other payables are creditors with the 2 5 REMENFIAE BEE NIRE D

following ageing analysis: WA

The Group
r&EE
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade payables: EHREMNHA

0 - 90 days 0£290H 46,706 9,231
91 days — 180 days 91AZ180A 1,812 3,324
Over 180 days 1808 LA £ 1,856 8,424
50,374 20,979
Accruals and other payables FERT B F R E 4 FE 5 3R 40,097 7,258
90,471 28,237
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003
HE-—FF=F=A=1—HALFE

Notes to the Financial Statements B3R &b

25. SYNDICATED LOAN AND OTHER INTEREST-BEARING 25. REERRHEMFTEME/R
BORROWINGS
The Group
rEE
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx T
Syndicated loan and other interest-bearing REEFR A BAR
borrowings comprise: 2
- Term loans -EHER 147,970 63,224
- Syndicated loan, unsecured -REET BEA 200,000 200,000
~ Trust receipt and import loans —RHUEREDER 113,374 156,758
- Bank overdrafts -HABEY % 381
461,368 420,363
Analyzed as: AMET
- Secured —HEAR 26,400 -
- Unsecured —EHR 434,968 420,363
461,368 420,363
The syndicated loan and other interest-bearing REEFRE M ERRER
borrowings are repayable as follows: THEHES
- Not exceeding one year or upon demand ——ERFRERE 286,168 205,597
— More than one year, but not exceeding two years ——ENE BERRRME 125,954 125,302
— More than two years, but not exceeding five years ~WENLE  BEFEREE 49,246 89,464
461,368 420,363
Less: Amount shown under current liabilities Mk : SRR R FE
- Syndicated loan -HEER (114,286) -
~ Other interest-bearing borrowings —H it S fE R (171,882) (205,597)
175,200 214,766

EZY Peace Mark (Holdings)

Limited H¥ER

(£®) AR 2 &



Notes to the Financial Statements B 3&$R & BsE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2003

25. SYNDICATED LOAN AND OTHER INTEREST-BEARING 5. BREERRERHEMITER
BORROWINGS (Continued) & (&)
The Group
X&HE
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Analyzed as: AT :
- Syndicated loan —REER 85,714 200,000
— Other interest-bearing borrowings —Hfhet SR 89,486 14,766
175,200 214,766
The Company
LN
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Syndicated loan and other interest-bearing REERREMGTE
borrowings comprise: ERBE:
- Syndicated loan, unsecured —REEH - EEE 200,000 200,000
The syndicated loan and other interest-bearing  SREIE & H it 5t BEF AR
borrowings are repayable as follows: T FHER -
— Not exceeding one year or upon demand ——ERRRERE 114,286 =
— More than one year, but not exceeding ——&ENE-BF
two years BB 85,714 114,286
- More than two years, but not exceeding —MENLE - BF
five years HAREF = 85,714
200,000 200,000
Less: Amount shown under current liabilities Mk : IR AEBREZRIE
- Syndicated loan —REER (114,286) -
85,714 200,000
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003
BEr—_EE=—F=-F=1—HIFE

26. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

Notes to the Financial Statements B3R &b

26. MMEHEAE

The Group
A&E
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —FRA 824 298
More than one year, but not exceeding —FA L BRER
two years k3 804 24
More than two years, but not exceeding MEA L - BRER
five years = 659 10
2,287 BEY
Less: finance charges W B ER (124) (55)
2,163 277
Representing finance lease obligations: MEREREZERBALT :
Current portion BN ERER 1 773 252
Non-current portion FERNER R 15 1,390 25
2,163 277
27. DEFERRED TAXATION 27. EIEMIA
The Group
r5E
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At the beginning of the year E20) 3,396 1,743
Provided for the year (note 11) RNEFZEE (Hat11) 3,360 1,653
At the end of the year FHR 6,756 3,396
Y Peace Mark (Holdings) Limited BEERN (£8) R A




FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003

BE_SF=-HF=-HA=1+—HIFE

27. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At the balance sheet date, the major components of the

provision for deferred taxation are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements B 3&$R & BsE

27. EERIE (&)
REER  EERERE TSBHMT :

Liability provided

Net potential
liability (asset)

unrecognized

BE AERELEE
BEREE (BE) B8
2003 2002 2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAET
Tax effect of timing differences AATSEMEE KE
attributable to: i
Excess of depreciation allowances HERHERA
over depreciation charged in TR BHREH
the financial statements HhzHE 6,802 3,442 5,209 3,687
Revaluation deficit on the REBERPEARLNE
Group's investment properties CREMEELR
situated in the People’s Republic Al
of China (46) (46) - -
Tax losses M EE - - (7,106) (4,306)
6,756 3,396 (1,897) (619)

Deferred tax has not been provided on the revaluation surplus
arising on the valuation of properties in Hong Kong as profits
arising on the disposal of these assets would not be subject
to taxation. Accordingly, the revaluation surplus does not

constitute a timing difference for tax purposes.

AREHETBYERMEL 2N BA
AN URSEERLERMELCER
BHYEELHARE - Bt - BHEEE
ERBHEL TEREE
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003
BEr—_EE=—F=-F=1—HIFE

Notes to the Financial Statements B 3&$R &M sE

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. B
Note Number of shares Par value Amount
i3 RH%E HE Ef
HKS HK$'000
BT AT
Authorised: A
As at 1 April, 2001, 31 March, 2002 RZEZ-£MA-A-
and 31 March, 2003 Z25-EZR=1-Rk
“E3-F-f=+1-H 6,000,000,000 0.10 600,000
Issted and fully paid: BREITRER :
As at 1 April, 2001 RZEE-4M@A-A 3,678,223,019 0.10 367,822
Capital reduction whereby the nominal value HIEERA - Bl BREER
of the shares was reduced to HK$0.005 each by BETRA 2 ARRA
cancellation of HK$0.095 paid-up capital for 0.095BLMkRAEE
each issued share HIH 2 5 R%0.005% T = (0.095) (349,431)
3,678,223,019 0.005 18,391
Capital consolidation whereby every 20 new issued shares  RZNA 4 » Btk 5205
with nominal value of HK$0.005 each in the capital of REDRR AR AR AR A
the Company following the capital reduction was HEREE0.005ETZ
consolidated into 1 consolidated share BETHROAH AR
Atk (3,494,311,869) 0.095 -
As at 31 March, 2002 RZBE-E=A=1-H 183,911,150 0.10 18,391
Rights issue of two rights shares for every BERE-RRHAER
one share held MR 2 (R (a) 367,822,300 0.10 36,782
Issue of new shares pursuant to AT REREmE TR
the exercise of share options (b) 55,425,000 0.10 5,543
Shares repurchased and cancelled EREEREHERA ( (1,000,000) 0.10 (100)
Issue of new shares as 2002 interim BIMRIERE=SEE
scrip dividend, in lieu of cash mH A RRBRE
NRERE (d) 24,741,383 0.10 2474
As at 31 March, 2003 R-FE=F
=A=t+-A 630,899,833 0.10 63,090

EX] Peace Mark

(Holdings)

Limited H¥ER

(£®) AR 2 &



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003
HBE-FF=F=A=1—HLFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(a)

During the year, the Company raised equity capital by
way of rights issue. The net proceeds of the rights issue

of HK$62 million were used as follows:

o about HK$24 million for establishing a distribution

arm in the United States;

o about HK$10 million for promoting the Group’s
licensed products through the distribution arm

aforementioned;

o about HK$17 million for developing its distribution

network in the PRC; and

o the remaining balance for the use as the general

working capital of the Company.

During the year, 55,425,000 new shares of HK$0.10
each were issued upon the exercise of options under a
share option scheme which became effective on 24
January, 2002 at exercise prices of HK$0.2 and HK$0.227
for 54,390,000 shares and 1,035,000 shares respectively.
These shares rank pari passu with the existing shares of

the Company.

Notes to the Financial Statements B 3&$R & BsE

28. BA&K (&

(a)

FR - ARAFRAHEMESR
AN o HEFRFTIS FRIE F5H62,000,000
BB RETAAR

e #924,000,000/ T A{EEE
Bk 5 SRS

0 #710,000,0007% 7T A {E & i
ta e n B EEARE
ZEHEER

O #717,000,0007% 7T A 1E 7 #h
HEEDBEZ 2 HB® &

FR- RIEBRE-—ER-_TT=
F—AZ+MA £ ERETE
T2 R M 3 1755,425,000/k &
BREBEOIOB T ZHMKR - HH
54,390,000/ 17 J3#20.2/8 7T 2 17
B B771E - 1,035,000/ A% 15 Bll%
0.227TBTLZTHEITE - ZFR
REARRZBERNEZEREE

o

Bk
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R &b

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003
BEr—_EE=—F=-F=1—HIFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 28. RA& (&
(c) During the year, the Company repurchased its own (© FA ARABARBRABEEDEEXS
shares on the Stock Exchange as follows: 2B - Fam T
Month of Number Price Aggregate
repurchase in 2003 of shares per share consideration paid
REBE=F2ZE@AH g 4= BRE® EFARE
HK$ HK$°000
BT FHET
March =H 1,000,000 0.42 420
The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase and ERHREBEREEHE  AARZ
accordingly the issued share capital of the Company BEITRAE B - BERZ
was reduced by the nominal value of these shares. The FiRfD 2 HE - BRIMES 2 HE
premium on repurchase was charged against share BEERGGER MR -
premium.
(d) (d)
Number of shares Proceeds credited to
issued as 2002 share capital Share premium
interim dividend Scrip price account account Total
R-BE_FHHEKER AR Z
BITZROHE REBRGBER FrERE B 17 )% 18 BR @zt
HK$ HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT &I &L T
24,741,383 0.219 2,474 2,945 5,419

K] Peace Mark (Holdings) Limited BEERN (£8) R A




Notes to the Financial Statements B 3&$R & BsE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003
HBE-FF=F=A=1—HLFE

29. RESERVES 29. f&1E
The Group ZA&KE

Leasehold Retained
(apitl property Buchange — profts ~ Praposed
foserve revaluation fluctuation (Accumulated final

Share  Merger  (Goodwill) Contrbuted  reserve Other — reseve losses)  dividend

pemin  defit  EAEE  apls HEME  eene  HE RBRA  REE T
RORE cfEM (B8 ERRE EMRE HMRE RBRE (RBEE)  BRE 4R
HKS000 — HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'O00  HKS'O00  HKS'000  AKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000

Tén T8r tEr TEr TEr TR TEr TR TR TEn

As at 1 Aprl, 2001 R-55-£MA-8

s previously reported NZAER 4325 (11988)  (28,787) - 5466 (17.907) - 103,19 - B3
Eifect of adopting BRI

S5AP 30 and S5AP 31 REFERENZE 78 - -y - - - - (1% - -
Asat 1 Aprl, 2001 R-F2-EMA-R

3 restated &j BB5 (11988 (19,629) - 5466 (17.907) -y - B3
Realzation of unrealized NHEgfrEE RS

holding loss of nvestments i

In securites upon disposal - - - - - 1788 - - - 1788
Credit arsing on capital reduction HERAES ZEEE - - 309,431 - - - - STV
Eliminated upon disposal of subsidary RHERBA A& - -0 - - - - - - 3000
Profit for the year TERRT - - - - - - -8 S X
As at 31 March, 2002 3,55 (11,988) 12310 309431 5,466 (22) - 130434 - 58948
Rights Issue of two shares for

glery share eld 29426 - - - - - - - - 19426
Offset Rights lssue expenses (4141) - - - - - - - - (4
Exercise of share options 5,571 - - - - - - - -5
Shares repurchased (322) - - - - - - - - (3)
Unrealized holding loss of

Investments in securites R - - ) - - - 0
Bichange realignment LS - - - - - - 8 - - 8
Profitfor the year RERRH - - - - - - - 5199 - 5199

Interim cash and scrip dividend mﬁ%&tﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁa 295 - - - - - - 8) - )
Proposed final dividend - - - - - - - 9463 9483 -

s at 31 Mrch, 2003 H-2R=FZR=1-R T (1% 03 w8 5466 (26 %  108% 9463 6124
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3&$R &M sE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003

29. RESERVES (Continued) 29. ffl (&
The Company 782 7]
Retained
profits
Share Contributed ~ (Accumulated Proposed
premium surplus losses) final dividend Total
REEA
KRG RE BEfEn (RRER) BRRERE @t

HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TAL THAL TR THAL T

As at 1 April, 2001 RZZE-FNA—-H 43,255 39,399 (7,279) - 75,375
Credit arising on capital reduction  BIBRAEE 2 # 5 - 349,431 - - 349,431
Loss for the year TEEER - - (15,342) - (15,342)
As at 31 March, 2002 W-ZZ-F=f=+—H 43,255 388,830 (22,621) - 409,464
Rights Issue of two shares for BERE-RRH

every share held EEMBRG 2HER 29,426 - - = 29,426
Offset Rights Issue expenses BEERFAY (4,141) = = = (@,141)
Exercise of share options B RE 5,571 - - = 5,571
Shares repurchased BEERR (322) - - = (322)
Profit for the year KEERH® - - 40,363 = 40,363
Interim cash and scrip dividend HEE & RIARA RS 2,945 - (8,276) = (5,331)
Proposed final dividend BRE RS - - (9,463) 9,463 =
As at 31 March, 2003 R-_FB=F

=ZA=+-H 16,734 388,830 3 9,463 475,030

kYA Peace Mark (Holdings) Limited BEERN (£8) R A




Notes to the Financial Statements B 3&$R & BsE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2003

29. RESERVES (Continued) 29. B (7
The capital reserve (goodwill) represents the total of the share BARGEE (B BB ARKRERSE K
premium of a subsidiary prior to becoming a member of the RSB E R AR 2 ROEE RKER
Group in a merger and the amount arising from the excess or EBERR SRR ANE B FE (5 AT B 2 A
shortfall of the purchase consideration over the fair value of ANEFEEC ATEBEIREZERN -

the Group's share of separate net assets of the subsidiaries

acquired.

The merger deficit of the Group represents the excess of the AEEzaHBREBARAERKEEST
nominal value of the shares in the Company issued as Bz EEEOERERRBZMERA]
consideration over the nominal value of the subsidiaries’ shares R EECERE -

transferred to the Company.

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the AREEHBAIEAR B TKERE D A

difference between the consolidated shareholders’ funds of ZEEREES AR EITZ

the subsidiaries acquired by the Company and the nominal ARRRNDEBECER

amount of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition.

The other reserve represents the amount of unrealized holding Hin#BEFEREZSFZRER K&

gain (loss) from the investments in securities. (E518) 3188 -

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed BREABRE-NN\—FRF%  ARAE

surplus of the Company is available for distribution to HBBRADIKTRR ° A - RREE

shareholders. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a BEAGFEHREATER ARATEE

dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if: RSRNIEE KB EHEBIER DR

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its (a) [FFBHEEHEEEHER X
liabilities as they become due; or

(b)  the realizable value of its assets would thereby be less (b) BEZEREESRE LM ER
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share HEHE  BBTRARRMEER
capital and share premium account. —H 1B o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003
BEr—_EE=—F=-F=1—HIFE

29. RESERVES (Continued)

154

Notes to the Financial Statements B3R &b

29.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company’'s reserves

available for distribution to shareholders were as follows:

& (&
HERA - AAATHIETRE 68
M -

2003 2002

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Contributed surplus EHRHN 388,830 388,830
Retained profits (Accumulated losses) RB&EH (RIEERE) 3 (22,621)
Proposed final dividend R HIR 2 9,463 -
398,296 366,209

Peace

M ark

(Holdings)

Limited H¥ER

(£®) AR 2 &



Notes to the Financial Statements B 3&$R & BsE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2003

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 30. EBIRAESTE

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include any
directors, employees, consultants or professional advisors,
suppliers or customers, and authorized agents of the Group.
The Scheme became effective on 24 January, 2002 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10

years from that date.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of
the number of issued shares of the Company from time to
time excluding the aggregate number of shares which were

issued pursuant to the Scheme.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
Directors, and in any event such period of time shall not
exceed a period of 3 years commencing on the expiry of 6
months after the date of the acceptance of the offer and
expiring on the last day of such period, or 24 January, 2012,

whichever is the earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
Directors, but shall be the higher of (i) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on the offer date, which must be a business day; and (ii) the
average of the closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the

five business days immediately preceding the offer date.

ARRRE—EBBAETE ([ZFTE)) - B
ERRB M EEEAEEXERGEET AR

BERMZABR2EE - LBz EKR2EE
BREASKECENES  RE BEIEXRE

CHEERER REFFAER - &R
FE_F-A-THEEEER - ¥ (FRIFKEH
HIEFT) A Z BB T FRBR

Rz Z e BRI BE R 2 BB AR P S B 2 IR AR X
BER FAREARARANEZEITRNHBKA
210%  NERREZEBETIRNEHK -

BRAIRKLBREZENCAK28AA - X
NEBARBEETRERED - MRER
BZIEHMRAEFEETE - BEEFREBERT
FRNRIGEARMENE RER 2/NEA
EwE=F IRZHRRE BRI
F-AZTHRAUREERE)ER -

BREZTEERESETE - BARINENE
ABAREXR)BEBARZMEBRAA
(M2l BEREERAF BN KHE : K
(WBERZBHEMMAEEXABIMEARE
KB ZBEOFHETE  UBSERE -

0
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3&$R &M sE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003
BEr—_EE=—F=-F=1—HIFE

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 30. BB EERHE (B)
Price of
Company's
Number of share options shares***
BREYE RARRGBER
Date of Exercise Exercise At
Name or Asat 1 Granted  Granted Lapsed  Exercised Atat3!  grant of period of price of At grant  exercise
category of April during for during during March  share share share  date of  date of
participant 2002 the year adjustment  the year the year 2003 options* options options**  options  options
SEENE N-B3CF RER AfHEE RER RER WN-23=F BRE ERE ERE NERE RNBERE
R mA-A R AR b3 fif ZA=t-R REBH TRHH ikl RuA® FEAH
HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT
Directors %
Mr. Tsang Kwong - 5,500,000 250,000 - 5,750,000 - 23(08/2002 23/02/2003 to £ 0200  0.202 0.430
Chiu, Kevin 23/02/2006
BRSIEE
Mr. Man Kwok Keung - 990,000 45,000 - - 1,035,000  05/09/2002 05/03/2003 to £ 0.227 0.2 -
XEELE 05/03/2006
Mr. Cheng Kwan Ling - 990,000 45,000 = 1,035,000 - 05/09/2002 05/03/2003 to £ 0.227 0.221 0.425
Ly 05/03/2006
- 7,480,000 340,000 - 6785000  1,035000
Other employees £ ff(g2
In aggregate - 14,690,000 715000 300,000 14,140,000 965,000  23/08/2002 23/02/2003 to £ 0200 0202 0405to
2% 23/02/2006 0.435
Suppliers and customers (& k%P
In aggregate - 33,000,000 1,500,000 - 34,500,000 - 23(08/2002 23/02/2003 to £ 0200 0202 0.430to
23 23/02/2006 0.440

55,170,000 2,555,000 300,000 55,425,000 2,000,000

1Y Peace Mark (Holdings) Limited BEERN (£8) R A




Notes to the Financial Statements B 3&$R & BsE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003
HBE-FF=F=A=1—HLFE

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 30. BB AERHE (FB)
* The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the grant & BREGBHEHRKEAHRZTRBRGZ
until the commencement of the exercise period. fF o
*x The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case e ETHREFTARE AR AIRA L FER
of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s AT - ERETTIR B A fEFEE

share capital.

***  The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the date of the grant ko RRUBIRERBE B BEZ AR ARG ER
of the share options is the Stock Exchange closing price on the trading REBRHEREAHIZRGABIMZ
day immediately prior to the date of the grant of the options. The price KB o RERETEAHEEARL AR
of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the date of the exercise of the BB BB ERFBREZ 2T
share options is the weighted average of the Stock Exchange closing EITEM 5 B AT T 1B Z IHEFI5 2 -

prices over all of the exercises of options within the disclosure category.

—ZE=F=ZA=+—8  ARARE
% 51 21 1% 7 2,000,00017 85 A% # K 1T

1513

“ i

As at 31 March, 2003, the Company had 2,000,000 share

v

au
a1l

options outstanding under the Scheme, with exercise periods

ranging from 23 February, 2003 to 5 March, 2006 and exercise F TEMANF=ET=F=_A=+=H
prices ranging from HK$0.200 to HK$0.227. The exercise in E-TTRE=HAHEH  TFEENT
full of the outstanding share options would, under the present 0.200/87C£0.227/87C ° RIEARRRE
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of RAERE  BEITHE RARTITE 2 BIRAES
2,000,000 additional shares of HK$0.10 each and proceeds B EL(TEEAHN2,000,0000 FAREEO.10
of approximately HK$428,000. BTz - FT{E5IEA1428,000/& 7T
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003

31. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Financial Statements B 3&$R &M sE

On 31 December, 2002 and 2 January, 2003, the Group

acquired 51% interests in Bensonic International Limited and

Omni International Holdings Limited and its subsidiary for
HK$7,800,000 and HK$50,106,000 satisfied in cash

respectively.

Wi B B /B 2 B
R-BE_F+_A=t—HER-ZTT=
F—HZH  A%EKEBensonic
International Limited & % 7| EIfR £ Bl B
RARIRENBERR 251%%Es - RED
547,800,000/ 7T % 50,106,000/ 7T -
AR @A o

2003
HKS$'000
FET
Net assets of the subsidiaries BANBARZ
acquired comprise of: BEFEBRE
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment B RERBAESRE 20,377
Leasehold improvements MEMERE 5,216
Plant and machinery B 55 % R I pe 28 608
Trademark L 22,460
Inventories FE 44,279
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E e IR 18,142
Bank balances and cash RITEFRES 3,034
Trade and other payables Z 5 R EMENFRIE (17,766)
Bank loan SBITER (5,308)
Minority interests DER R (37,421)
53,621
Negative goodwill arising on consolidation ~ #RAREEEZBEE (4,101)
Goodwill arising on consolidation HEREELEZEE 8,386
Total purchase price paid, satisfied in cash BRI ZWEBEEEIR - ARE T 57,906
Less: cash of the subsidiaries acquired B WBHBARZRE (3,034)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents EHEANBARZEE
in connection with the purchase kB¢ EBYR L FRE
of the subsidiaries 54,872

Bt} Peace Mark

(Holdings)

Limited H¥ER

(£®) AR 2 &



Notes to the Financial Statements B 3&$R & BsE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003
HBE-FF=F=A=1—HLFE

32. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 3. HE—ZXWEAF
On 1 April, 2002, the Group disposed of 1% interest in a RZZEE-_FNA—H A5EEELE
subsidiary Gar Shun Enterprises Development Limited for nil MEARRMEXERARAAZ1%E
consideration. Thereafter, this Company became a jointly & o WhiE - RR RN AAREE 2 R
controlled entity. B2 o
The net assets of Gar Shun Enterprises Development Limited EACEERERARNHERSEZEE
at the date of disposal were as follows: FEMAT
2003
HK$'000
FET

Fixed assets & & E 1,106
Inventories 8 740
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H o fE W R 2,773
Bank and cash balances RITRBRER 257
Trade and other payables Z 5 R EMENFRIE (4,497)
Bank overdrafts SRITEX (379)
Gain/loss on disposal HEWE/BiE -
Total sale price HELER -
Satisfied by: SENPEE

Cash consideration received BWRSRE =
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003
BEr—_EE=—F=-F=1—HIFE

Notes to the Financial Statements B3R &b

32. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued) 3. HE—RXWEBAR (&
Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect FRHEMBRARZRe RE2EEMR
of the disposal of a subsidiary: NFED

2003

HK$'000

FTER

Cash consideration received BBz RS RE =

Bank and cash balances disposed of BHEZRITIRACER (257)

Bank overdrafts disposed of BEHEZRITES 379
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents ALENBRARMELEZES

in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary kBR&EBMRAFHE 122

33. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 33. RERBREEEY
The Group
PN |

2003 2002

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET F& T

(Restated)

(BE5)

Cash and bank balances Re RRITER 207,568 154,380

Bank overdrafts RITEX (24) (381)

Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year FEREReRRSEED 207,544 153,999

Peace Mark (Holdings) Limited BEERN (£8) R A




FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003
HBE-FF=F=A=1—HLFE

34.

35.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March, 2003, the Group has contingent liabilities in
respect of bills discounted with recourse amounting to

approximately HK$67,951,000 (2002: 179,740,000).

The Company has given corporate guarantees to banks in
respect of general banking facilities granted to subsidiaries
amounting to HK$929,000,000 (2002: HK$816,000,000). The
extent of such facilities utilized by the subsidiaries as at 31
March, 2003 amounted to approximately HK$261,000,000
(2002: HK$195,000,000).

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company had entered into interest rate swaps to manage
its interest rate risk. As at 31 March, 2003, the total notional
amount of such instruments was HK$201,000,000 (2002:
HK$201,000,000). The notional amounts of the outstanding
interest rate swaps indicate the contract size outstanding at
the balance sheet date and do no represent the amount at

risk.

As at 31 March, 2003, the Company had not entered into
currency-linked deposit contracts to manage its foreign

currency risk.

As at 31 March, 2002, the total US dollar based currency-
linked deposits were amounted to US$2,200,000. The

alternative currency of those contracts was Euro currency.

34.

35.

A nnual

Notes to the Financial Statements B 3&$R & BsE

HAREE

RZZT=F=A=+—H A5BEH
BARAEEREMRZR ARSI AAE
£167,951,0008 L (Z T T =& :
179,740,000/ 7T) °

ARABGMER RS 2 —RRITRET
7% R 1T1EH1929,000,000/8 T (Z T F
Z% : 816,000,000/ 7T) Z R AIHELR o K
AREEZTT=F=A=+—H#Y
FA#)261,000,0008 T (Z T =& :
195,000,000/ 7T) 2R & ©

e®MIA
AREIBFT U EBAUERARER
e RZEZ=F=H=1+—H " &ZF
A7 %%BE201,000,000% T (=T
Z% : 201,000,000/ 7T) ° WAKLLE 2 F
R HEEEBEBTRAEEANKRLEE Y
BHRE - MUIFEEDREAR 8 -

H

=
=<

RZFF=F=-A=1—H0 ARALE
FIANE SRR NNEREINERER o

F=ZA=+—H UETAHE
H 977 5 52,200,000E T ° B
HZBEREEABT
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R &b

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003
BEr—_EE=—F=-F=1—HIFE

36. CAPITAL AND LEASE COMMITMENTS 36. EARHBEEEIE

(@)  Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 March, 2003 (a)
not provided for in the financial statements are as

follows:

Contracted for EET4

RZBEZE=F=FA=+—HREE
BHEHRERBZANEAAEN

T

The Group
A%

2003
HK$'000
FH

2002
HK$'000

FET

628

(b)  As at 31 March, 2003, the total future minimum lease by R-ZTZT=F=FA=+—H A&EzH

payments under non-cancellable operating leases in BT RIBF 2 MR REEE & HARRE
respect of leasehold land and buildings are payable as Bz RERERENT :
follows:
The Group
KEE
2003 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
— Within 1 year -—%R 2,341 935
— After 1 year but within 5 years - B_FEZHEF 6,911 3,707
— After 5 years —hFi& 1,267 5,746
10,519 10,388

Y4 Peace Mark (Holdings) Limited BEERN (£8) R A




FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2003
HBE-FF=F=A=1—HLFE

37.

38.

39.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March, 2003, leasehold properties with carrying value
of approximately HK$15,956,000 had been pledged to secure

banking facilities for a subsidiary.

As at 31 March, 2002, no assets of the Group were pledged.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

After the balance sheet date the Directors proposed a final

dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 12.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The presentation and classification of items in the consolidated
cash flow statement have been changed due to the adoption
of the requirements of SSAP 15 (revised 2001) “Cash flow
statements”. As a result, certain advances from banks have
been excluded from the definition of cash equivalents, cash
flow items from taxation, returns on investments and servicing
of finance have been classified into operating, investing and
financing activities respectively and a detailed breakdown of
cash flows from operating activities has been included on the
face of the consolidated cash flow statement. Comparative

figures have been reclassified to conform with the current

year's presentation.

37.

38.

39.
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BEREE

R-ZE=F=A=+—H KEEHE
15,956,0008 T2 A EWEE FHIME - &
A—RHBERARERIRITEE ZHHRE -

R-ZFT_F=-A=1—0 ~KEHE
BREE

HERREE

REERR  EZEZRNEHEKE -5
AR BINERME2

EEBRBF

AREREEHLERE 1% (ZFTT—
FREFD [RERER]I AT - WG
REeEMERZZIINARBEDEEME
2Rt ETRITBHEEREFED
ZEBEDIG  REREEE AREATH
RECOREBERNEA RO ERE
EER - REERDRBELRY  UERE
RREMER—BELBABALERBR
TREZHADN - LBBFETFES -
NEAAFEZ2I5A -
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